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The history of hair in Kinmount is rather 
obscure. Until 1919, there is no record of a 
barber or a ladyôs hairdresser in the village. 
It can be presumed that the trimming of the 
locks was a private affair; carried out by a 
family member in the privacy of the home. 
Seeing some of the hair styles in the old pho-
tos, this can be believed! 
In 1919 Kinmount witnessed its first barber 
shop. Returning WW I veteran Wally Scott 
purchased a chunk of lot 4, east of Main St 
from Fred Dettman for $200 and built the 
Barbershop. Wally continued for several 
years before selling out to Sylvester 
Doherty. (Wally became a game warden) In 
1940 Alex Macdonald became the barber-in-
residence on Main St. By now the operation 
included a billiards table. He was burnt out 
in the Great Fire of 1942 and the barber shop 
was never replaced. It stood as a vacant lot 
until Ed Todd added a chip wagon on the lot 
and created the Kinmount Fish and Chips. 
(this business still operates today under Billy 
Fountain,)  
Later barbers in the village included Norman 
Silver, who had a chair right in the dining 
room of his house and clipped the writerôs 
locks as a young boy (1960s). The writerôs 
father claimed he was a barber by inher-

itance (his father being the above Wally 
Scott) and often did ñtravelling clip jobsò 
for family and friends (including the author 
prior to Norm Silver). One of Bill Scottôs 
regular customers was a retired chap named 
Billy Walton who resided at Furnace Falls. 
The second Billy was a bit of a moonshiner 
who produced an occasional batch of brew. 
(Payment for the hair-cut was often made 
in laughs and liquor.) On one such hair-
call, one of the bystanders present asked 
Billy Walton if he was worried about the 
travelling barber cutting his hair while im-
bibing his brew. The old gentleman replied 
ñHe has cut my hair sober and he has cut 
my hair under the influence. There was no 
difference in the hair-cut.ò 
In later years, the hair history of Kinmount 
evolved to the lady hair dressers. Mary 
Hartin, Chris Hancock, Karen Crego, Lori 
(last name?) and others who operated la-
dyôs hair salons in the village. The most 
recent hair establishment is JCôs Cuts & 
More operated by Jessica Callaghan.  

Continued page 14 
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Friends and Neighbours: The Rosseau-Nippissing Colonization Road, Part 2 
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Magetawan 
The village of Magnetawan 
marked a half-way point be-
tween Rosseau and Nipissing 
Village on the colonization 
road. It formed at the point 
where the Nipissing Road 
crossed the Magnetawan Riv-
er. The Magnetawan River 
was rather unique to the 
whole district because it could 
be accessed by steam boat 
from its mouth at Britt on 
Byng Outlet, Georgian Bay 
all the way to Burkeôs Falls. 
The riverôs headwaters are in 
Algonquin Park, but thanks to 
a lock at Magnetawan, navi-
gation was open to Burkeôs 
Falls. The locks were opened 
in 1886, and are still in use 
today!  
The Magnetawan River Val-
ley had a pocket of suitable 
farmland, and the area had an 
extensive agricultural com-
munity as well as the lumber 
industry. The village still 
holds a yearly Fair that show-
cases the farm heritage. The 
Magnetawan River was a val-
uable resource to the lumber 
industry. The village itself 
was surveyed in 1873.  
While the earliest settlers ar-
rived via the Nipissing Road, 
the village was also linked to 
the Muskoka Road via steam-
er to Burkeôs Falls. In the 
1880s, Burkeôs Falls also 
hosted a railway station and 
further drew traffic from 
Magnetawan. The Nipissing 
Road was eventually aban-
doned, but Magnetawan still 
had a highway link to Parry 
Sound.  
In 1998, the village of Mag-
netawan amalgamated with 
Spence, Croft and Chapman 
Townships. Today, its popula-
tion number 1,500.  

Rye 
North of Magnetewan in Lount 
Township was the hamlet of 
Rye. It grew up where the 

White Pine Lumber Company 
cadge road crossed the Nipis-
sing Road. The earliest settlers 
were German, and a school to 
learn English was a first priori-
ty. A gentleman named Rye 
gave a donation to build the 
school and thus his name was 
selected when a post office was 
established in 1878. The post 
office continued in operation 
until 1965. Most of the 
buildings are aban-
doned along with the 
Road today. 
 
Bummerôs Roost 
This unusual name has 
a story behind it. One 
of the first residents of 
the area was a trapper 
named Richard Man-
nering. Like many trapper-
characters, Dick lived in less 
than stellar conditions (a tent) 
and was always ñpoorò, and was 
nicknamed Dick The Bummer. 
To mark his spot, he hung a 
sign ñBummerôs Roostò at his 
home and the name was trans-
ferred to the subsequent com-
munity. When a post office was 
established along the Nipissing 
Road, the local hotel-keeper 
decided the native term 
ñMecunomaò was a more im-
pressive name and selected this 

moniker for the 
community. But 
the original title 
sounded so unu-
sual, it survived 
the passage of 
time. The hotel 
eventually 
burned and the 
community be-

came a ghost town. 
 
Commanda 
The next community along the Nip-
issing Road was Commanda; located 
where the Commanda Creek was 
bridged by the Nipissing Road. A 
few miles to the north, the Nipissing 
Road actually joined the Muskoka 
Colonization Road (near Alsace) 
and the trail went on to the end of 
both roads at Nipissing Village. The 
arrival of the railway at Trout Creek 
to the east made both Roads virtual-
ly obsolete. Later in the 1930s the 
construction of Highway 11, also 
through Trout Creek, left the com-
munity as a virtual ghost town. 
The name Commanda was the name 
of a local native chief. Actually it 
was a title ñcommanderò earned by 
his role in the War of 1812. Com-
mander and his followers moved to 
the area after the War and met the 
first settlers in the 1870s.  
Commanda was famous for its huge 

general store-hotel complex. James 
Arthurs built the first structure, but a 
few years later he moved his com-
plex a few miles north for better 
road access. Witnesses said the 
structure was sawn into sections and 
towed to the new location. The store 
was later turned into a museum. It 
still stands today, but needs restora-
tion. 
 
 
Alsace 
This small community was located 
on both the Nipissing and Muskoka 
Colonization Roads. The Alsace 
Road linked the community with 
Powassan to the east. The Northern 
Railway was built through Powas-
son and made Alsace a backwater. 
The Alsace Road now reversed its 
flow: taking traffic east to Powasson 
instead of west to Alsace. The vil-
lage became a virtual ghost town 

and the road link with Nipissing 
Village was abandoned to 
through traffic. 
The village was named after the 
province of Alsace in France. 
Many of the early settlers were 
Alsatians, but they spoke Ger-
man instead of French! The last 
surviving major structure is St 
Johnôs Roman Catholic Church.  
 
Nipissing Village 
This ñportò on Lake Nipissing 
was the terminus of both the 
Nipissing Colonization Road and 
the Muskoka Colonization Road. 
From here, traffic could be sent 
by water all around this large 
lake and the French River. The 
Muskoka Road never reached its 
terminus and very little traffic 
used the village. Supplies to the 
village could be brought in by 
canoe from the Ottawa River. 
But it was a long trip and little 
contact was made by this tradi-
tional route. Between 1875 when 
the Nipissing Road was opened 
to the village and 1886 when the 
Northern Railway reached Cal-
landar, Nipissing Village was a 
fairly active port. After 1886, it 
declined.  
After 1886 the northbound traf-
fic was effectively diverted east 

of Lake Nipissing to the boom-
ing centre of North Bay. It had 

all the contacts Nipissing Village 
lacked including railway connec-
tions with the rest of Canada. 

Later (1920s) this bypass was 
reinforced by the building of 

Highway #11, now the major 
route to northern Ontario. Like 

all communities on the Nipissing 
Road, the traffic shifted east to 

communities along the Muskoka 
Road (later Highway 11) and the 
railway line. But the lost com-

munities along the Nipissing 
Road still host a smattering of 

tourists who frequent its lovely 
lakes and rivers. Two highways 

# 114 and #520 still intersect the 
old Colonization Road and allow 
access to the central portion of 

Parry Sound District. The Nipis-
sing Colonization Road does not 

connect Rosseau with Lake Nip-
pissing anymore, but its routes 

A homestead in Rye 

Magnetawan Docks 
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Friends, continued from p. 2 

and communities still have ac-
cess from the outside.  

 

 

TAOIST TAI CHI at Galway Hall 
Mondays & Thursdays 10 am - noon 

From top:  Lighthouse at Ahmic Harbour on Magnetawan River; 
abandoned homestead at Rye; end of the road at Nippissing Vil-
lage; Alsace homestead 


